II. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


Assignment No.1. The Circuit Court erred when it held in the Declaratory Judgment 

Order that the 1977 Deed did not convey to Rona McCardle the subject one-half oil and gas 

property interest. 

Assignment No.2. The Circuit Court erred when it failed to follow its own precedent 

in the Declaratory Judgment Order holding that the terms "excepted and reserved" as used 

together in the clause at issue in the 1977 Deed are ambiguous and require resort to extrinsic 

evidence in order to determine the grantors' intent. 

Assignment No.3. The Circuit Court erred when it entered the Declaratory Judgment 

Order without joinder of all indispensable parties who purportedly had an interest in the subject 

one-half oil and gas property interest. 

Assignment No.4. The Circuit Court erred when it failed to dismiss for lack of 

standing plaintiff Gary Rine's claims, asserted in his capacity as administrator ofOkey Yoho's 

estate, because Okey Yoho died intestate and his purported title to the subject one-half oil and 

gas property interest, if any, would have immediately vested in Okey Yoho's heirs upon his 

death, not his estate. 

Assignment No.5. The Circuit Court erred when it failed to hold in the Declaratory 

Judgment Order that Gastar's affirmative defenses of estoppel, laches, and alternatively, adverse 

possession barred Plaintiffs' claims to the subject one-half oil and gas property interest. 
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III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

A. Factual Background. 

1. The 1957 Deed. 

By deed dated January 30, 1957 (the "1957 Deed"), Clifford and Beulah Franklin 

(together, the "Frankl ins") conveyed by general warranty deed to Okey and Frances Yoho 

(together, the "Yohos") certain interests in a 95 acre tract ofland situated in Marshall County, 

West Virginia (the "Property"). (A.R. 125; A.R. 180.) The 1957 Deed conveyed the Property in 

fee simple to the Y ohos but reserved to the Franklins an undivided one-half interest in the oil and 

gas in place underlying the Property, including gas storage rights (the "Franklin ~ O&G 

Interest"). (A.R. 180.) Accordingly, pursuant to the 1957 Deed, the Franklins retained for 

themselves the Franklin ~ O&G Interest and transferred to the Y ohos the surface of the Property 

(the "Surface Property") and the other undivided one-half interest in the oil and gas in place 

underlying the Property (the "Subject ~ O&G Interest"). 

The 1957 Deed contained a number of exceptions, covenants and conditions. In 

particular, the deed contained an exception concerning a 22.4 acre tract of land conveyed by 

W. Franklin to Walker W. Yoho, by deed dated March 9, 1905 (the "22.4 Acre Exception"l); an 

8 acre exception identified by a metes and bounds description (the "8 Acre Exception"z); a right 

I The 1957 Deed states "Excepting and reserving, however, and not intending hereby to convey, 22.4 acres of said 
land conveyed by J. W. Franklin, et ux., to Walker W. Yoho, by deed dated the 9th day of March, 1905, and 
recorded in said Clerk's office in Deed Book 109 at page 375 ... " (A.R. 181.) 

2 The 1957 Deed states "and excepting and reserving unto the parties of the first part another parcel of land more 
specifically bounded and described as follows: Beginning at a comer in the northern boundary of said 22.4 acres of 
land, at a red oak mentioned in the description thereof in the deed to Walker W. Yoho, referred to above; thence ... 
to said red oak, the place of beginning, containing approximately eight (8) acres, more or less ...." (A.R. 181.) 
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of way granted to Wheeling Electric Company (the "Wheeling Electric Right ofWay,,3); and a 

right ofway granted to the Yohos for the Burch Ridge Road (the "Burch Road Right ofWay,,4). 

(A.R. 181-182.) 

The 1957 Deed conveyed the interests to the Y ohos, as joint tenants with the right of 

survivorship, and was recorded in the Office of the Clerk of the County Commission of Marshall 

County, West Virginia (the "Clerk's Office"), at Deed Book 320, Page 1. (A.R. 180.) Shortly 

after the deed was recorded, the Yohos' ownership of the Surface Property and Subject 'is O&G 

Interest and the Franklins' ownership of the Franklin 'is O&G Interest were listed as separate tax 

assessments in the Marshall County land books, and the Y ohos and Franklins began paying 

property taxes on their respective property interests. (A.R. 220; A.R. 271.) 

2. The 1977 Deed. 

By general warranty deed dated April 5, 1977, the Yohos conveyed the Surface Property 

and the Subject 'is O&G Interest to Rona McCardle ("McCardle"). The 1977 Deed states that the 

Y ohos conveyed to McCardle: 

the same property conveyed to Okey F. Y oho and Frances A. 
Y oho, his wife, by Clifford E. Franklin and Beulah Franklin, his 
wife, by deed dated the 30th day of January, 1957, and recorded in 
the office of the Clerk of the County Court of Marshall County, 
West Virginia, in Deed Book 320, page 1. 

(A.R. 22.) The 1977 Deed contained the san1e metes and bounds description of the Property that 

was included in the 1957 Deed. (A.R. 22; A.R. 180.) 

3 The 1957 Deed states "This conveyance is also made subject to a certain right of way granted by Clifford E. and 
Beulah Franklin, to the Wheeling Electric Company, by deed dated the 28th day of May, 1947, recorded in said 
Clerk's Office in Deed Book 254 at page 254 ... " (A.R. 182.) 

4 The 1957 Deed states "There is also herewith granted to the parties of the second part the right to use, in common 
with the parties of the flIst part and other persons, having an interest therein, a certain roadway extending from the 
improved Burch Ridge Road along the westerly boundary of the property hereby conveyed to other farms in the 
vicinity ..." (A.R. 183.) 
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Not only did the 1977 Deed convey "the same property" conveyed to the Y ohos in the 

1957 Deed, the 1977 Deed also contained, in nearly verbatim form, all of the same exceptions, 

covenants and conditions contained in the 1957 Deed. In particular, the 1977 Deed contained, in 

nearly verbatim form, the 22.4 Acre Exception, the 8 Acre Exception, the Wheeling Electric 

Right of Way, and the Burch Road Right of Way. (A.R. 23.) The 1977 Deed also contained an 

exception for the Franklin ~ 0&0 Interest. (A.R. 24.) The 1977 Deed was recorded in Clerk's 

Office on April 6, 1977. (A.R.25.) 

3. 	 The Yohos Stop Paying Taxes, and McCardle Starts Paying Taxes, on the 
Surface Property and Subject Yz O&G Interest Conveyed by the 1977 Deed. 

Prior to 1977, the Y ohos had been assessed, and paid, property taxes on the Surface 

Property and Subject ~ 0&0 Interest. (A.R. 220 - 2295.) After executing the 1977 Deed, the 

Y ohos stopped paying property taxes on the Surface Property and Subject ~ 0&0 Interest and 

McCardle began paying property taxes on these property interests. (A.R. 230 - 232.) The 1977 

Marshall County land books were changed to remove the Yohos as owners of the Surface 

Property and Subject ~ 0&0 Interest and to designate McCardle as the owner of these property 

interests. (A.R. 230 - 232.) McCardle paid the property taxes on these property interests 

beginning in 1977 and continued to do so for decades. (A.R. 220, A.R. 271 6.) 

5 Showing in 1961, Beulah Franklin assessed "~ Int 102.08 O&G Long Run" and Okey & Frances Yoho assessed 
"102.08 Long Run & ~ O&G ROY;" same assessment for the Yohos through 1976 with the additional designation 
of the property interest at Tax MaplParcel 19-13; in 1977, the Franklin ~ O&G Interest assessed to Beulah Franklin; 
in 1977, new entry for Rona Lee McCardle, Tax MaplParceI19-13, for "102.080 Long Run & ~ O&G Roy" "from 
Okey F. Yoho et ux DB 465 P 256 4-5-77 Pd $39500;" in 1977, the lined-out/expunged entry for "Yoho Okey & 
Frances A," Tax MaplParceI19-13, "102.080 Long Run & ~ O&G ROY" "to Rona Lee McCardle DB 465 p. 256 
4-5-77 Pd$39500;" from 1977 through 2004, McCardle was assessed taxes upon" 1 02.080 Long Run & ~ O&G 
ROY," Tax MaplParcel 19-13; and in 1995, the Franklin ~ O&G Interest was sold to the State for failure to pay 
1994 taxes. 

6 Indicating that McCardle is the owner of "102.080 Long Run & ~ O&G ROY," Tax MaplParceI19-13, and that 
she paid the assessed taxes from 2005 through 2015. 
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After executing the 1977 Deed, the Y ohos stopped paying taxes on the Surface Property 

and Subject Y2 O&G Interest; did not claim ownership of the Subject Y2 O&G Interest; and did 

not seek to have the Marshall County land books changed to eliminate the designation of 

McCardle as the owner of the Subject Y2 O&G Interest. While the Y ohos had consistently been 

assessed for, and paid, property taxes on the Surface Property and Subject Y2 O&G Interest prior 

to 1977, after they executed the 1977 Deed they ceased to be assessed for, or pay, any such taxes, 

and never sought to change the tax assessment maintained by the Marshall County Assessor's 

office on those property interests. (A.R. 220; A.R. 271.) 

4. The Y ohos and their Successors Did Not Challenge Ownership. 

Frances Yoho died on January 8, 1979. (A.R. 283.) As a result ofFrances A. Yoho's 

death, other property that was assessed to both Frances Y oho and her husband Okey Y oho was 

subsequently assessed only to Okey Yoho. (A.R. 242.) In other words, after 1979, tax 

assessments for other property that Okey Y oho continued to own changed, but Okey Y oho never 

challenged or sought to change the tax assessments or records indicating that he transferred, and 

did not own, the Subject Y2 O&G Interest. Okey Yoho died intestate on August 11, 1997. (A.R. 

20.) Until shortly before the initial complaint was filed in this action, Okey Yoho's heirs made 

no attempt to challenge or seek to change the tax assessments or records indicating that the 

Yohos transferred to McCardle the Subject Y2 O&G Interest in 1977. 

5. The Oil and Gas Lease. 

In 2008, McCardle, as owner of the Surface Property and Subject Y2 O&G Interest, 

executed a "paid up" Oil and Gas Lease (the "Lease") with Gastar Exploration, Inc. ("Gastar"). 

Pursuant to the Lease, McCardle leased to Gastar the Subject Y2 O&G Interest that she acquired 

pursuant to the 1977 Deed. (A.R. 26.) 
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6. The Okey Y oho Estate Administration. 

In 2013, sixteen years after Okey Yoho's death and five years after the Lease was 

executed, plaintiff Gary Rine ("Rine") petitioned for and was appointed as administrator of the 

Estate ofOkey F. Yoho. (A.R. 21.) Rine is the husband of Linda Rine, who is the daughter of 

Okey Yoho. (A.R. 286.) Less than two months after he was appointed administrator ofthe 

estate, Rine filed the complaint in the underlying action. (A.R. 11.) 

B. Procedural Background. 

1. The Initial Complaint and Motion to Dismiss. 

On October 15,2013, Rine, as the purported executor of the estate ofOkey Franklin 

Y oho, filed a complaint against Gastar and McCardle asserting claims for conversion and 

trespass. (A.R. 11.) Rine alleged that he, as executor of the Estate of Okey Franklin Y oho, was 

the rightful owner of the Subject Yz O&G Interest and sought compensatory damages and 

injunctive relief, including the creation ofa lease between Gastar and Rine. (A.R. 11.) 

Gastar moved to dismiss the complaint. (A.R.32.) Gastar asserted that Rine did not 

have standing to assert his claims because under West Virginia intestacy law, title to real 

property automatically descended to the heirs of Okey Y oho by operation oflaw at the time of 

his death. Even if Okey Yoho did own the Subject Yz O&G Interest (which Gastar denied), that 

property interest would have automatically passed to Okey Y oho' s heirs rather than his estate 

because he died intestate. Accordingly, Rine, as executor of the estate ofOkey Yoho, did not 

have standing to assert claims concerning ownership of the Subject Yz O&G Interest. (A.R.32.) 

Rine simultaneously opposed the motion to dismiss and moved to amend the complaint. 

In his opposition to the motion to dismiss, Rine argued that the interest at issue was not a 

property interest but rather a "chattel real.'; (A.R. 39.) Rine also moved to amend the complaint 
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to add five of the purported eight individual Yoho heirs as plaintiffs. (A.R.47.) The Circuit 

Court granted Rine's Motion to Amend. (A.R. 61.) While the Amended Complaint named 

some, but not all, of Okey Y oho' s heirs as plaintiffs, it also still continued to name Gary Rine, in 

his capacity as executor of the estate ofOkey Franklin Yoho, as plaintiff. (A.R. 125.) 

2. The First and Second Amended Complaints. 

On January 27,2014, Gary Rine, as executor, and five individual heirs ofOkey Yoho 

(Harold L. Y oho, Gary Y oho, Denver Y oho, Linda Rine, and Norma Jean Ashe) filed an 

amended complaint. Plaintiffs asserted the same claims, and sought the same relief, as requested 

in the initial complaint (conversion, trespass, compensatory damages, injunctive relief, and 

creation of a lease). (A.R. 63.) Gastar moved to dismiss the amended complaint, again asserting 

that Rine did not have standing to assert his claims. Gastar also asserted that the amended 

complaint should be dismissed because certain heirs of Okey Y oho were necessary parties but 

had not been joined in the lawsuit. (A.R. 76.) 

On October 15,2014, the Circuit Court entered an Order that provided, among other 

things, that "the style of the case shall be amended to reflect that Gary Rine is the administrator 

of the estate ofOkey Franklin Yoho;" that "all remaining known and unknown heirs ofOkey 

Franklin Y oho shall be joined as additional defendants in this civil action to determine their 

interests, if any, in the subject matter ofthis litigation;" that Thomas E. White shall be appointed 

to represent all unknown heirs ofOkey F. Yoho, as their guardian ad litem; and that Gastar's 

right to argue under Rule 56, W. Va. R. Civ. P., whether the real property interest at issue had 

previously passed through the estate of Okey Y oho and immediately vested in his heirs is 

preserved. (A.R. 123.) The Circuit Court ordered Plaintiffs to file a second amended complaint 

that adds all known and unknown heirs of Okey Y oho as additional party defendants and that 
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includes a claim for declaratory judgment requesting a determination ofthe respective interests, 

ifany, of the known and unknown heirs ofOkey Yoho. (A.R.122.) Known heirs who were not 

parties to the first amended complaint at the time included Betty Deloris Haddix, Samuel F. 

Henry, Connie J. Streight, Dinah Arlene Gray, Nancy K. Brown, Mark Blain Campbell, Carl 

Smith, and Charles Smith. (A.R. 76.) 

On February 23,2015, Plaintiffs filed a second amended complaint. (A.R. 125.) While 

the caption of the second amended complaint listed as defendants "All Known and Unknown 

Heirs of Okey Franklin Y oho," Plaintiffs took no action to specifically name, or effectuate 

service upon, the known individual heirs who had been previously identified as Yoho heirs. In 

fact, the second amended complaint does not include as either named plaintiffs or defendants any 

of the other identified, known heirs of Okey Y oho notwithstanding the Circuit Court's Order. 

Nonetheless, while Plaintiffs failed to name or serve these individuals, Plaintiffs asserted a 

declaratory judgment claim seeking a declaration that they were the owners of the Subject Y2 

O&G Interest. (A.R. 167.) Gastar answered the second amended complaint, denying the claims 

and asserting its affirmative defenses. (A.R. 136.) 

3. The Status Conference Order. 

On January 22,2016, the Circuit Court entered a Status Conference Order that, among 

other things, stayed all claims except the declaratory judgment claim; scheduled briefing on the 

declaratory judgment claim; and ordered Plaintiffs to serve the second amended complaint on the 

known and unknown heir defendants through a Class II publication in the Moundsville Echo 

Newspaper. (A.R. 147.) Plaintiffs purportedly caused to be published a legal advertisement in 

the Moundsville Daily Echo on March 10 and 17, 2016. (A.R.318.) 
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4. The Declaratory Judgment Hearing. 

Plaintiffs moved for summary judgment on their declaratory judgment claim, asserting 

that the 1977 Deed reserved for the Yohos the Subject Y:z O&G Interest. (A.R. 167 - 188.) 

Plaintiffs argued that the 1977 Deed, "with context from the 1957 Deed," unambiguously 

reserved to the Yohos the Subject Y:z O&G Interest. (A.R. 406 - 407.) Gastar opposed the 

motion and sought a declaration that McCardle was the owner ofthe Subject Y:z O&G Interest. 

(A.R. 189.) In support, Gastar submitted an affidavit of McCardle that stated, among other 

things, that the Y ohos never advised McCardle that they did not intend to transfer the Subject 

Y:z O&G Interest to her and that the Yohos never claimed ownership of the Subject Y:z O&G 

Interest after executing the 1977 Deed. (A.R. 348.) Gastar also submitted affidavits of their 

expert witness, Robert Shuman, in which he provided the opinion that the 1977 Deed was in the 

form of a traditional general warranty deed and that the reference to the undivided one-half oil 

and gas interest in the 1977 Deed was an exception for the Franklin Y:z O&G interest designed to 

limit the general warranty similar to the inclusion of the 22.4 Acre Exception, the 8 Acre 

Exception, the Wheeling Electric Right of Way, and the Burch Road Right of Way, repeated 

nearly verbatim from the 1957 Deed. (A.R. 287; A.R. 307.) 

On June 2, 2016, the Circuit Court held a hearing on Plaintiffs' summary judgment 

motion. (A.R. 369.) Among other things, the Court inquired about the parties' respective 

positons conceming ambiguity: 

The Court: 	 Tom, I think I heard both sides say that the deed is clear and 
unambiguous. Is that true? 

Ms. Toriseva (sic): Yes, sir. 

Mr. Heiskell: Your Honor, I said it's clear and unambiguous as it relates to the 
general warranty provision. That is correct. 
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The Court: 	 Okay. 

Mr. Heiskell: 	 And I think it's clear and unambiguous as it relates to the grant of 
the surface and one-half of oil and gas. 

The Court: 	 As to the pertinent parts of the deed, do you all agree that it is clear 
and unambiguous? It's just what's the interpretation? 

Ms. T oriseva: Right. 

Mr. Heiskell: 	 Well it's difficult for me to say because the question is what are 
you interpreting? Are you interpreting the scope of the general 
warranty, which we have seen as being important? Are you 
interpreting the scope of the grant, which we've seen as important? 
Or are you interpreting the scope or existence of anything to the 
to the reservation? And I would say that it is unambiguous to the 
warranty, and it is unambiguous to the scope of the grant, and I 
would say it is ambiguous, at best, to whether there was a 
reservation to the grantor of the one-half oil and gas interest. And 
I am sorry that I can't make that more clear. 

(A.R. 407 - 408.) 

5. The Circuit Court's Letter Order and Gastar's Motion for Reconsideration. 

On June 7, 2016, the Circuit Court sent a letter to counsel (the "Letter Order"). 

(A.R. 425.) In the Letter Order, the Court stated, among other things, that it was granting 

Plaintiffs' summary judgment motion and that it "adopts, with little exception, Plaintiffs' 

analysis as set forth in counsel's filings and oral argument." (A.R.426.) The Court requested 

Plaintiffs' counsel to prepare and submit "a draft order reflective of the Court's foregoing 

determinations ..." (A.R. 426.) Plaintiffs subsequently submitted a proposed order to the 

Court. (A.R. 428) 

On June 16,2016, Gastar submitted both a letter to the Circuit Court ("Response to Letter 

Order") (A.R. 460) and objections to Plaintiffs' proposed order (A.R. 439). In its Response to 

Letter Order, Gastar requested the Court to specify which part of "Plaintiffs' analysis" that it did 

not adopt (as stated in the Letter Order) to ensure that the record is complete and that the order 
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accurately reflected the Court's holding. (A.R.460.) Similarly, Gastar objected to Plaintiffs' 

proposed order because the proposed order did not specify the part of Plaintiffs' analysis that the 

Circuit Court did not adopt (because the Circuit Court itself had not identified such analysis). 

(A.R.439.) 

In addition to its Response to Letter Order and objection to the proposed order, Gastar 

also filed a Motion for Reconsideration. (A.R. 443.) In its motion, Gastar argued that in a prior 

case captioned Venango 2rt Century Energy, Inc. v. Hagedorn, Civil Action No. 11-C-218 H, 

Circuit Court of Marshall County, West Virginia (the "Hagedorn Case"), the Circuit Court 

entered an order (the "Hagedorn Order") in which it held that 

It is unfortunate common practice to use the terms [excepted and 
reserved] somewhat interchangeably and causes ambiguity. 

[... ] 

When the deed scriveners used both terms [excepted and reserved], 
it is difficult to tell which intention was meant. Thus, we look at 
the factual context for assistance. 

(A.R. 454.) Identical terms were at issue in Plaintiffs' motion for summary judgment on their 

declaratory judgment claim. Gastar asserted that pursuant to the precedent established in the 

Hagedorn Order, the terms "excepted and reserved" in the clause of the 1977 Deed concerning

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