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

IV. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

Petitioner Gastar has appealed Judge Hummel's ruling making several assignments of 

error. This case is neither factually nor procedurally as complicated as the Petitioners' brief 

makes it seem. Simply, Judge Hummel held that Respondents own one-half of the interest in the 

oil and gas underlying the subject property pursuant to the deed. In its decision, the Court agreed 

with Gastar's own argument that the reservation clause of the deed was clear and unambiguous 

when it "excepted and reserved from this conveyance" one-half of the oil and gas to the Yohos. 

(A.R. 8). As important as the language "excepted and reserved" is, the language "from this 

conveyance" is also as equally important. "[F]rom this conveyance" means the conveyance from 

Y oho to McCardle, therefore, excepted and reserved from the Y oho to McCardle conveyance is 

the 112 interest in the oil and gas that Y oho owned. The Circuit Court held that "this 

conveyance" is the Yoho to McCardle conveyance, "and no other". (Id.) The Circuit Court also 

agreed with Gastar when it expressly specifically found that "the 1977 deed expresses the intent 

of the parties in plain and unambiguous language and is not subject to judicial construction or 

interpretation". (Id.) The Circuit Court did not contravene its own prior ruling in Venego v. 

Hagedorn, which Gastar states required an analysis of the intent of the parties. It did not require 
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such an analysis. The Hagedorn Order analyzed the language of the controlling reservations and 

determined their meaning. Here, while not required, the Court also addressed the intent of the 

Yohos in the 1977 deed when it stated "[h]ad the Yohos intended to convey their undivided (1/2) 

interest in the oil and gas, the quoted language above would not have appeared in the 1977 

deed". (A.R. 9). But that analysis, in Hagedorn, and here, was based on the four comers of the 

document, here the deed. 

Okey and Frances Y oho owned 1/2 the oil and gas rights underlying the subject property 

since their original purchase in 1957. When the Yohos conveyed the property to Petitioner 

McCardle in 1977, Yohos kept the one-half oil and gas rights that they owned. In fact, the Yohos 

even had a lease on the subject oil and gas, identified in the deed AND in effect for 12 years 

prior to the conveyance between Y oho and McCardle. Frances Y oho died and then later, Okey 

Y oho died intestate. Upon his intestate death, all of his real property interests, including the oil 

and gas underlying this property passed immediately to his heirs. Because this is clear, the 

Circuit Court's Order should be affirmed, the stay lifted, and the case should be remanded to the 

Circuit Court for assessment ofmoney damages owed to the Heirs ofOkey Yoho. 

v. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT 

The Respondents believe that from the very beginning of this case, the issue of ownership 

of the oil and gas was very simple: either the Y ohos continued to own the oil and gas after 1977 

or they did not. The parties agreed in their original briefing that the 1977 deed was clear and 

unambiguous. (A.R. 171; A.R. 204). Gastar argued ambiguity only in the alternative. After one 

weeds through the multitude of additional unnecessary arguments made by the Petitioners, what 

remains is the only important issue: did the 1977 deed reserve the oil and gas to the Y ohos? The 
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issue was decided by the Circuit Court in favor of the Respondents and can now either be 

affirmed or not by this Court on the papers. While counsel for the Respondents would look 

forward to oral argument before this Honorable Court, this case does not appear to require it. 

VI. ARGUMENT 

A. 	Jurisdiction is not disputed 

The Respondents do not dispute the jurisdiction of this Court to hear and rule on this 

appeal. 

B. 	The Standard of Review is de novo 

Likewise, the Respondents do not dispute that the standard of review for both Summary 

Judgment and Declaratory Judgment is de novo. Painter v. Peavey, 192 W.Va. 189,451 S.E.2d 

755 (1994) ("A circuit court's entry of summary judgment is reviewed de novo."). Cox v. 

Amick, 195 W.Va. 608.466 S.E.2d 459 (1995) ("A circuit court's entry of declaratory judgment 

is reviewed de novo."). 

C. The Circuit Court Did Not Err When It Ruled the 1977 Deed Reserved the 112 
Interest In Oil and Gas to Y oho. 

1. 	 The 1977 Deed Conveyed the Surface Property to Petitioner McCardle but 
"Reserved and Excepted" the 112 Interest in Oil and Gas to Y oho. 

"Deeds are subject to the principles of interpretation and construction that govern 

contracts generally. Deeds, like any other written agreements, are the repository of the contract. 

Indeed, they are much more solemn than the usual unsealed agreement not acknowledged for 

record. They are a solemn declaration of all the covenants comprised in them or intended to be 

made between the parties, and none other. A deed is a writing to prove and testify the agreement 

of the parties thereto to the things therein contained. In short, a deed is an instrument executed 
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with formality, and imports full and complete exposure of the intent of the parties. It speaks the 

fmal agreement by the clearest and most satisfactory evidence." Faith United Methodist Church 

v. Morgan, 231 W.Va. 423, (2013). "In order to create an exception or reservation in a deed 

which would reduce a grant in the conveyance clause which is clear, correct and conventional, 

the reservation must be expressed in certain and definite language." G&W Auto Center, Inc. v. 

Yoursco, 167 W. Va. 648,280 S.E.2d 327, 328 (1981) (quoting Hall v. Hartley, 146 W. Va. 328, 

119 S.E.2d 759 (1961). 

The 1977 deed contains the following language limiting the language from all of what the 

Y ohos owned: 

There is further excepted and reserved from this conveyance an undivided one
half (Yl) interest in the oil and gas, including gas storage rights, within and 
underlying the land conveyed hereby conveyed, together with such mining rights 
and privileges as may be necessary and convenient to the operation thereof for 
production, storage or observation of said oil and gas and the strata containing the 
same. (A.R. 24). 

Judge Hummel found this reservation reserves and excepts from the conveyance the same 

Yl oil and gas rights that were conveyed to Okey F. Yoho from Clifford Franklin (A.R. 147). This 

is not a mere recitation of the reservation and exception of the oil and gas rights reserved unto 

Clifford Franklin when the property was conveyed to Okey F. Yoho in 1957. This is "certain and 

definite language" expressing a_ reservation of 1/2 the oil and gas rights owned by Y oho for ''this 

conveyance" from Yoho to McCardle in 1977 as required by G&W Auto Center, Inc. v. 

Yoursco. 

2. The Reservation of the Oil and Gas to Y ohos is Clear and Unambiguous. 
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Reservations contained in a deed must be clear, precise, and definite. Specifically,"[i]n 

order to create an exception or reservation in a deed which would reduce the grant in a 

conveyance clause which is clear, correct and conventional, such exception or reservation must 

be expressed in certain and definite language." G&W Auto Center at 328. 

The limiting language of the 1977 deed is certain and definite. The limiting language 

regarding the oil and gas states (at the risk ofbeing repetitive) the following: 

There is further excepted and reserved from this conveyance an undivided 
one-half (~) interest in the oil and gas, including gas storage rights, within and 
underlying the land conveyed hereby conveyed, together with such mining rights 
and privileges as may be necessary and convenient to the operation thereof for 
production, storage or observation of said oil and gas and the strata containing the 
same. (A.R. 24). (Emphasis Added.) 

The above referenced limiting language clearly indicates that while the Y ohos are conveying 

real property to Petitioner McCardle, the Y ohos are keeping all of the oil and gas that they 

currently own, 112 of the entire oil and gas interest. This clear and unambiguous language is 

logically cemented by another clause containing limiting language later in the 1977 deed. That 

language states: "[t]his conveyance is made subject to all exceptions, reservations, covenants 

and conditions referred to or contained in the aforementioned deed and all prior deeds of 

record." (A.R. 24). The 112 oil and gas at issue here was excepted and reserved! to the Yohos 

and not conveyed by the first cited paragraph of limiting language. The other 112 oil and gas 

that was never conveyed to Y ohos in 1957 but kept by the Franklins was addressed by the 

second cited paragraph of limiting language, putting any grantee on notice that there are no oil 

1 Petitioner Gastar's own expert indicated on the record in a colloquy with Judge Hummel during the oral argument, 
though not sworn, that "excepted and reserved" are now used interchangeably though they have in the past had 
different meanings. Gastar's expert,:Mr. Shuman stated " ...but the cases have developed over the last half century 
that those terms are used so interchangeably, and they are used so often together, that they have basically become 
synonymous ... " (A. R. 401, Lines 21-23). 
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and gas rights to convey. On its own, each separate paragraph is clear and unambiguous as to 

what it limits. 

Gastar refuses to yield to the plain language of the deed because they are motivated to 

correct a non-lawyer abstractor's title search mistake. Gastar's mistake resulted in the 

company signing a lease with the wrong person, paying lease proceeds to the wrong person, 

unlawfully unitizing property that is actually not leased at all, drilling and producing the oil 

and gas from that property, converting the oil and gas of the heirs of Y oho, and unlawfully 

paying royalties to Ms. McCardle. The misinterpretation of the clear and unambiguous deed 

language, mischaracterization of county tax records, and then a switch of argument from 

unambiguous to ambiguous (after the Court agreed it was "clear and unambiguous) is Gastar's 

attempt to have the Court right their wrong instead of Gastar righting their own wrong by 

recognizing the lawful claim of the heirs to the property. 

3. 	 Gastar paints a false picture of its prior position regarding the deed 
language; it was not until Judge Hummel ruled against Gastar that it argued 
ambiguity. 

o In its Brief in Opposition to Plaintiff's Declaratory Judgment Claim (A.R. 189) 

Gastar states "[t]he 1977 deed is clear and unambiguous." CA.R. 204). Later in the same 

paragraph, Gastar asserts "[t]he 1977 deed expresses the intent of the parties in plain and 

unambiguous language and is not subject to judicial· construction or interpretation."(ld.). Gastar 

reasserts this in the same brief when it states "Gastar asserts that the 1977 deed is clear and 

unambiguous." (A.R. 205). 

• During oral argument at the Declaratory Judgment hearing, Gastar proclaimed 

"[a]nd we believe the 1977 deed is clear and unambiguous." (A.R. 384 at Lines 14-15). 
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o Again during oral argument Gastar stated· "[W]e think the 1977 deed IS 

unambiguous." (A.R. 391). 

• Gastar, at this point, had only argued ambiguity "in the alternative". Then for the 

first time, near the end of the oral argument hearing, Gastar shifted its argument and asserted that 

the 1977 deed is ambiguous and requires intent analysis with extrinsic evidence. (A.R. 407-408). 

8 During oral argument, Gastar's counsel stated to the Circuit Court essentially 

·Gastar wants it both ways. "And I would say that it is unambiguous to the warranty, and it is 

unambiguous to the scope of the grant, and I would say it is ambiguous., at best, to whether there 

was a reservation to the grantor of the one-half oil and gas interest." (A.R. 408). 

• After the Circuit Court's letter order was received from the Circuit Court, Gastar 

realizing its fate, filed a Motion to Reconsider now arguing exclusively the 1977 deed is 

ambiguous. (A.R 443). 

.. The Petitioner's Brief on Appeal incorrectly asserts Judge Hummel misstated or 

~isunderstood Gastar's assertions of no ambiguity in the Court's Declaratory Judgement Order. 

(petitioner's Appeal Brief at 12 and Footno~e 7). The Circuit Court misunderstood or misstated 

nothing; Gastar clearly states in its briefing that the 1977 deed is clear and unambiguous: 

• 	 "The deed is clear and unambiguous." (A.R. 204). 

• 	 "The 1977 deed expresses the intent of the parties in plain and 

unambiguous language and is not subject to judicial constructiuon or 

interpretation." (Id.). 

• 	 "Gastar asserts that the 1977 deed is clear and unambiguous." (A.R. 205). 
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Gastar seems to be tailoring its argument regarding ambiguities to fit its desired outcome. 

Gastar only resorts to arguing ambiguity in the face of Judge Hummel's finding that the deed is 

"clear and unambiguous" in its reservation of oil and gas rights to Okey Y oho . Then and only 

then, does Gastar assert that the deed is ambiguous. 

4. 	 There is Another Clause in the 1977 deed putting McCardle (and any oil and 
gas title abstractor) on notice that no oil and gas was to be conveyed which is 
being raised for the first time and definitively affirms the logic of the trial 
court. 

The Appeals process is an interesting thing for lawyers. A lawyer can think she knows 

everything about her case, until called on to write an appeal brief when more details emerge and 

get noticed. One would think that through all of the events that occur during the course of 

representation, i.e., complaint filing, motion to dismiss defense, amended complaints, summary 

judgment briefing and oral argument, there will be little left to know. But an appeal causes 

lawyers to re-examine their case and talk amongst their co-counsel. It is that re-examination of 

the 1977 deed and discussion with co-counsel that the following was noticed in the 1977 deed: 

This conveyance is also made subject to that certain oil and gas lease granted by Okey F. 
Yoho and Frances A. Yoho, his wife, to Allen R. Poole, dated April 23, 1964, and 
recorded in said Clerk's Office in Deed Book 363, Page 583, which said oil and gas lease 
was assigned to Pittsburgh Plate Glass by assignment dated July 7, 1964, recorded in said 
Clerk's Office in Assignment Book 4, Page 505 CA.R. 24). 

Rona McCardle must have known on the day the Y ohos delivered the deed that she was 

not being conveyed the oil and gas because there was already a lease for oil and gas to which she 

was not being assigned. The existence of an oil and gas lease in the name of the grantor at the 

time of the conveyance proves the oil and gas was reserved to the grantor and confmns the 

analysis of the trial court, interestingly enough, made even without the benefit of focus on this 

clause. 
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5. 	 Who Paid the Taxes is Irrelevant Because the Deed is Clear and Intent is Not 
Examined Absent Ambiguity. 

The payment or non-payment of taxes would only be a factor if it was necessary for a 

Court to look outside the deed to determine the intent of the parties in making the deed. "An 

instrument that expresses the intent of the parties in "plain and unambiguous language" is not 

subject to judicial construction or interpretation". Sally-Mike Properties v. Yokum, 175 W. Va. 

296, 300, 332 S.E.2d 597, 601 (1985). However, "[rJesort to rules of construction and aids to 

interpretation, including extrinsic evidence, is proper where the language of an instrument is 

ambiguous and subject to more than one meaning." Id.at 300. The payment or non-payment of 

taxes would clearly be extrinsic evidence and not proper for consideration unless the deed was 

ambiguous. The deed before this Court is not ambiguous. Any aids to interpret the intent of the 

parties, like payment of taxes, is not proper or necessary here because the deed is "clear and 

unambiguous" and not subject to judicial construction or interpretation. 

Nowhere in the West Virginia case law or the West Virginia Code does it provide that a 

person who pays the taxes on the property of another automatically becomes the owner of that 

property. West Virginia Code does provide "[o]ne who pays taxes on the interest of any other 

person shall be subrogated to the lien of the State upon such interest." W.Va. Code § 11A-1-9. It 

is well known that West Virginia has a process to deal with properties that have delinquent taxes 

owed on them. The entire process culminates in a Sheriff s sale on the courthouse steps that does 

not transfer ownership of the property until the delinquent party has the opportunity to redeem. 

The other one-half (Yz) oil and gas interest that is the subject to this lawsuit and that McCardle 

paid property taxes on was never delinquent and did not go through the delinquent tax sale 

process. Therefore, Petitioner McCardle cannot claim to have obtained the 1/2 oil and gas rights 

outside of the 1977 conveyance. 
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Interestingly enough, Gastar appears to be incorrectly asserting that Rona McCardle 

actually paid taxes on the oil and gas interest at issue here. When in fact, upon close examination 

of the tax documents submitted as evidence by Gastar2, there has not even been an assessment of 

taxes for the oil and gas interest here and no calculation on the documents. McCardle could not

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